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Independent Auditor’s Report

Vermilion County Board
Danville, Illinois

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Vermilion County,
-linois, (County) as of and for the year ended November 30, 2003, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of Vermilion County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained mn Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of matertal misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

Management has not recorded certam fixed assets and general infrastructure assets in governmental
activities and, accordingly, has not recorded depreciation expense on those assets. Accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that those assets be capitalized
and depreciated, which would increase the assets, net assets, and expenses of the governmental
activities. The amount by which this departure would affect the assets, net assets, and expenses of the
governmental activities is not reasonably determinable.

In our opinion, because of the effects of the matter discussed in the preceding paragraph, the financial
statements referred to above do not present fairly, in conformity with accounting. principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the financial position of the govenmental activities of
Vermilion County, Tllinois as of November 30, 2003, and the changes in financial position thereof for
the year then ended.

In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Vermilion County, Iilincis as of November 30, 2003 and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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As described in Note 13, the County has implemented a new financial reporting model, as required by
the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement No. 37, Basic
Finamcial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments: Omnibus, as of November 30, 2003.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated February 10,
2004, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our test of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, grants, and contracts. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in assessing the results of our audit.

The budgetary comparison information, schedule of funding progress for Ilinois Municipal Retirement
Fund, the statistical information and the Illinois Department of Human Services grant report
information are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of budgetary
comparison information, the schedule of funding progress and the statistical information is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it. The County of Vermilion, Iilinois has not presented the
management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require to supplement, although not be part of, the basic financial statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Vermilion County, IHlinois’ basic financial statements. The combining financial
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and 1s not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by
us in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit, is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

C gz orreclbssan_ L) A

Danville, llinois
February 10, 2004






YERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
November 30, 2003

Governmental Basiness-Type
Activities Activities Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash % 6,869,628 § 980,987 § 7,850,613
Temporary investments 9,131,450 381,298 9,312,748
Receivables, net 457,817 1,159,715 1,617,532
Accrued interest - 635 635
Prepaid items 3,869,144 - 3,865,144
Due to/from other funds - - -
Recetvable from/payable to external parties 1,956,960 (1,025,688) 931,272
Due from other governments 2,204,614 - 2,204,614
Investments 1,817,836 - 1,817,836
Total current assets 26,307,449 1,496,947 27,804,396
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Taxes receivable 7,772,053 - 7,772,053
Capital assets:
Land - 1,000 1,000
Buildings - 5,478,614 5478614
Transportation equiptnent - 91,528 91,528
Reeycling equipment - 96,610 96,610
Other equipment - 1,036,066 1,036,066
Total, at cost 7,772,053 6,706,818 14,478,871
Less accumuiated depreciation - 4,722,378 4,722 378
Total noncurrent assets 7,772,053 1,984 449 9,756 493
TOTAL ASSETS 3 34,079,502 % 3481387 § 37,560,889
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,357471 % 251,586 $ 1,609,057
Accrued payroll 772,039 258,449 1,030,488
Due to others 67,174 - 67,174
Deferred revenue 7,903,339 - 7,903,336
Accumulated unpaid Option II days 58,427 - 58,427
Current portion of long term obligations 175,000 - 175,000
Total current iiabilities 10,333,450 510,035 10,843,485
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Nencurrent portion of long term obligations 4,345,000 - 4,545,000
Taotal liabilities 14,678 450 510,035 15,188.485
NET ASSETS
Invested In capital assets, net of obligations (4,520,000} 4,546,087 26,087
Restricted for capitaf projects 963,772 - 963,772
Restricted for road projects 1,862,018 - 1,862,018
Restricted for election 1,620 - 1,620
Restricted for working cash 289,980 B 289,980
Restricted for Regional
Superintendent of Schoots 160,628 - 160,628
Unrestricted 20,641,034 (1,574,735) 19,066,299
Total net assets 19,401,052 2,971,352 22,372,404
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 3 34,079,502 § 3,481,387 % 37,560,885

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the
accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and
notes to the basic financial statements
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVYERNMENTAL FUNDS
November 30, 2003

Major Special Revenue Funds Nonmajor Total
General Health Public Safety County Motor Geovernmental Governmental
Fund Department  Building Rent Fuel Tax Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash b 1,065,804 S 468986 $ 290,480 § 751,607 % 4,065,448 § 6,672,325
Temporary invesiments 1,900,000 - 1,530,000 760,000 4,381,430 8,531,450
Receivables:
Taxes, net of allowance for
estimated uncollectibles 1,316,700 231,683 2,722,500 - 3,058,482 7,329,365
Other 11,712 - 1,487 14,370 101,048 128,817
Prepaid itemns - - 3,413,859 - 453,285 3,869,144
Dhe from other funds 219,337 70 - 36,950 1,679,858 1,936,215
Due from other governments 1,097,114 161,857 403,455 100,818 441,370 2,204,614
Investments 1,817,836 - - - - 1.817.836
TOTAL ASSETS 3 7,428,503 § 892,596 § 8,383,781 § 1,603,945 § 14,180,941 § 32,489.766
LIABILITIES
Accounts payabie $ 191,810 % 38600 3% 24518 % 80,674 $ 521,679 $ 857,281
Accrued payroll 525,072 88,027 105,619 3,128 30,193 772,039
Due to other funds - - - - 36,950 36,950
Due to other governments - - - - 67,174 67,174
Deferred revenue 1,316,700 325,514 2,722,500 - 3,093,620 7.458.,334
Total liabilities 2,033,582 452,141 2,852,637 83,802 3,769,616 9,191,778
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for capital projects - - - - 963,772 963,772
Reserved for road projects - - - 1,520,143 341,875 1,862,018
Reserved for election - - - - 1,620 1,620
Reserved for working cash - - - - 289,980 289,980
Reserved for Regional
Superintendent of Schools - - - - 160,628 160,628
Unreserved, reported in
General Fund 5,394,921 - - - - 5,394,921
Special Revenue Funds - 440,455 5,531,144 - 8,651,450 14,623,049
Total fund balance 5,394,921 440,455 3,531,144 1,520,143 10,411,325 23,297,988
TOTAL LIABHLITIES AND
FUND BALANCE 3 7,428,503 § 892,596 % 8,383,781 § 1,603,945 § 14,180,941 § 32,489,766

These financial statements shouid be read only in connection with the
accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and
notes {o the basic financial statements

6
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
November 30, 2003

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Fund balances-total governmental funds $ 23,297,988

Additional revenues for which recognition is not made in the governmental
funds based on modified accrual basis are recorded as revenue in the
statement of activities. 325,106

Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of insurance
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund is
included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 356,385

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. (4,578,427)

‘Net assets of governmental activities $ 19,401,052

These financial statemenis should be read only in connection with the
accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and
notes to the basic financial staiements

7
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended November 30, 2003

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (3,094,693)

Tax revenues for which recognition is not made in the governmental funds
are recorded as revenue in the statement of activities 325,106

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets. Repayment of bond principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal repayments capital lease 165,000
Increase in compensated absences (2,229)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities 162,771

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
maintenance and insurance to individual fimds. The net expenditure of

internal service funds is reported with governmental activities (288,902)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (2,895,718)

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the
accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and
notes to the basic financial statements

10



CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Temporary investments
Receivables, net
Accrued inferest
Due from other funds

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Land
Buildings
Transportation equipment
Recycling equipment
Other equipment
Total, at cost
Less accurnulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroli
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITTES AND NET ASSETS

VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
November 30, 2003

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -

Vermilion Manor Other Enterprise Internal Service
Nursing Home Funds Total Fund
5 810,171 § 1708316 § 980,987 § 197,303
- 381,298 581,298 600,000
1,132,533 27,182 1,159,715 445,005
- 633 635 1,577
- - - 57,695
1,542,704 379,931 2,522,635 1,301,580
- 1,000 1,000 -
5,459,614 19,000 5,478,614 -
91,528 - 91,528 -
- 96,610 96,610 -
1,008,184 30,882 1,039,066 -
6,539,326 147,492 6,706,818 -
4,621,196 101,182 4,722,378 -
1,938,130 46,310 1,984,440 -
3 3,880,834 % 626241 $ 4,507,075 § 1,301,580
3 227896 $ 23,690 % 251,586 % 500,190
250,132 8,317 258,449 -
1,025,688 - 1,025,688 -
- - - 445,005
1,503,716 32,007 1,535,723 945,195
4,545,087 1,000 4,546,087 -
(2,167,969 593,234 (1.574,735) 356,385
2,377,118 594,234 2,971,352 356,385
3 3,880,834 $ 626,241 § 4,507,075 § 1,301,580

These financial statements should be read cnly in connection with the
accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and

netes to the basic financial statements

11



VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended November 30, 2003

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Vermilion Manor Other Enterprise

Governmental
Activities -

Internal Service

Nursing Home Funds Total Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 7,963,660 § 401,897 % 8,365,587 § 333,327
Fines and forfeits - 2,600 2,060 -
Grants and contributions 4800 - 4,800 -
Miscellaneous 227765 71.986 94,751 -
Total operating revenues 7,991,255 475 883 8,467,138 333,327
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 5,374,625 145,710 5,520,335 938,752
Supplies and materiais 428,782 8,824 437,606 -
Other services and charges 188,422 45,015 233,437 39,706
Contractual services 1,550,721 197,641 1,748,362 -
Capital outlay 1,761 1,627 3,388 -
Depreciation 200,880 12,625 213,505 -
Total operating expenses 7,745,191 411,442 8,156,633 978,458
Operating income (loss} 246,064 64,441 310,505 (645,131)
NON-QPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Taxes - - - 346,675
Interest income 3,012 6,070 5,082 9,554
Interest expense (6,592) - (6,592) -
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) {3,580) 6,070 2,490 356,229
Income (loss) before transfers and contributions 242, 484 70,511 312,995 (288.902)
OPERATING TRANSFERS
Operating transfers in 15,000 - 15,000 -
Operating transfers out - (124,032) (124,032) -
Net operafing transfers 15,000 (124,032 (109,032) -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 257,484 {53,521) 203,963 {288.902)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,119,634 647,755 2,767,389 645 287
TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 2,377,118 3 594,234 § 2,971,352 § 356,385

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the

accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and

notes o the basic financial statements
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
Year Ended Novernber 30, 2003

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Vermilion Manor  Other Enterprise Internal Serviee
Nursing Home Funds Total Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers and contributions
including cash deposits $ 8118971 478,810 8,597,781 3 425,803
Cash paid to supptiers and for claims (2,096,039) {257,101} (2,353,140) (916,532)
Cash paid to employees (5,315,934) (143,722} (5,459,656) -
Cash paid te other funds {112,000) - (112,000) -
Cash paid to others (3,383 - (3,583) -
Cash received from fines and forfeits - 2,000 2,000 -
Net cash provided by {used i)
operating activities 591,413 79,987 671,400 (490,729)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received for property taxes - - - 254,199
Cash transfers from other funds 15,000 15,000 -
Cash transfers to other funds - (124,032) (124,032) -
Net cash provided by (used in)
for noncapital financing activities 15,000 (124,032) {109,032) 254,199
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipsaent (41,087) - (41,087 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments - {60,851) (60,851} -
Interest paid (6,392} - (6,592) -
Interest received 3,012 7,436 10,448 13,310
Proceeds from sale of imvestments - 183,872 183,872 250,000
Net cash provided by investing activities (3,580) 130,457 126,877 263,310
NET INCREASE IN CASH 361,746 86,412 648,138 26,780
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 248,425 84,404 332,829 170,523
CASH, END OF YEAR g 810,171 3 170,816 3 980,987 $ 167,303
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
Year Ended November 30, 2003

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Vermilion Manor Other Enterprise [nternai Service
Nursing Home Funds Total Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) 5 246,064 $ 64,441 $ 310,303 $ (645,131)
Adjustments to reconcile opetating income (loss) to net cash -
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 200,880 12,625 213,505 -
Effects of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables 127,713 4,927 132,642 -
Accounts payable and accrued payroll 132,339 {2,006} 130,333 61,926
Due to other funds (112,000) - (112,000 -
Deferred revenue - - - 92476
Due to others (3,585) - (3,385 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) -
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3 561,413 3 79,987 $ 671,400 3 (490,729)

These financial staiements should ke read only in connection with the
accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and
notes to the basic financial statemenis
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
November 30, 2003
Agency
Funds
Cash $ 7,372,542
Investments 1,147,000
Receivables:
Taxes, net of allowance for
estimated uncollectibles 861,489
Accrued interest 3,954
Due from other funds 8,204
Inventory 35,906
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,429,095
Accounts payable $ 241,425
Due to other funds 939.476
Due to other governments 138,025
Due to others 3,576,822
Due to taxing bodies 4,533,347
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 9,429,095

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the
accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and

notes to the basic financial statements
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
November 30, 2003

Vermilion County, Illinois {(County) is a municipality located in Central Illinois. Revenues are
substantially generated as a result of taxes assessed and allocated to the County (exampies would be
property, sales, income, and motor fuel taxes), charges for services performed and governmental
grants. Revenues are therefore dependent on the economy within the territorial boundaries of the
County and nearby surrounding area and the appropriations of entitlements at the State and Federal
Government level. Taxable industry within the area is primarly manufacturing and retail. The
surrounding area has a substantial agricultural base.

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the County.

PRINCIPLES USED TO DETERMINE THE SCOPE OF THE REPORTING ENTITY

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability. A
primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. It is
also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of
an organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is
a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be financially accountable for
governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it.

The County's reporting entity includes the County's governing board and all related organizations for
which the County is financially accountable.

The County is not aware of any entity which would be financially accountabie to the County fo the
extent that they would be considered a component unit of the entity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program reventues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary

funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental finds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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YERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
November 30, 2003

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the propnetary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied for budgetary purposes. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue ttems are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting,
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. :

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by providing a separate set
of self-balancing accounts which comprise its assets, liabilities, and fund balance/retained earnings,
revenues, and expendifures/expenses.

Governmental Funds are those through which governmental functions of the County are financed. The
acquisition, use, and balances of the County’s expendable resources and the related liabilities are
accounted for through governmental funds. The County reports the following major governmental
funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating find of the County. Tt is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Health Deparitment Fund — This fund is used to account for revenue sources dedicated for Public
Health.

Public Safety Building Rent Fund — This fund is used to account for the activities of the Public
Safety Building.

County Motor Fuel Tax Fund — This fund is used to collect and disburse state funds for County road
projects.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
November 30, 2003

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Additional governmental fund types which are combined as nonmajor funds are as follows:

Special Revenue Funds — These funds are used to account for County activities which are primarily
financed by special revenue sources such as governmental grants or general property taxes levied for
specific purposes.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Fund — The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be
used for acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by propnetary
funds and trust funds).

Permanent Funds — Permanent Funds are accounted for essentially mn the same manner as
Governmental Funds.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board.

As a generdal rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS

The County adopts an annual budget and appropriation ordinance in accordance with Chapter 35 of
the Tllinois Compiled Statutes. The budget covers the fiscal year ending November 30, and is available
for public inspection at least fifteen days prior to final adoption. All appropriations cease with the close
of the fiscal year. The budget document is prepared for all budgetary funds using the modified accrual
basis for projecting expenditures and revenues.

Once the County budget has been adopted, no further appropriations shall be made durnng the year,
except in the event of an tmmediate emergency at which time the County Board by a two-thirds vote
makes appropriations in excess of those authorized in the budget.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
November 30, 2003

TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

Temporary investments consist of certificates of deposit with maturities of less than one year. These
investments are stated at cost which approximates market value.

INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of U.S. Government Mutual Funds and the County’s original deposit in the
Governmental Insurance Exchange Pool. Investments are recorded at quoted market prices.

INVENTORY

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFO)
basis.

FIXED ASSETS AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The County has not maintained historical records required to record the costs of capital assets acquired
over the years, other than in the proprietary funds. The costs to purchase these items have been
expenditures of the various funds when incurred. This lack of historical information makes it
impractical to accurately present the capital assets owned by the County. This represents a departure
from generally accepted accounting principles.

Public domain (infrastructure), consisting of improvements to roads, sidewalks, and bridges has been
recorded as current expenditures of various funds when incurred. Beginning with this fiscal year,
infrastructure assets are to be capitalized on a prospective basis in accordance with Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34. Since the County has recorded these as expenditures,
this represents a departure from generally accepted accounting principles.

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the statement of net assets.

The proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance” measurement
focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their
activities are included on the balance sheet of these funds.

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by the proprietary funds is charged as expense against
their operations. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line

method. Buildings and equipment are recorded at cost and the farm land of 137 acres is carried at
$1,000, the approximate cost at the date of acquisition.

ACCUMULATED UNPAID VACATION AND PERSONAL DAYS
Accumulated unpaid vacation and personal days are not accrued in Governmental Funds. The liability
of the County for accumulated unpaid Option II days (the former sick pay benefit) is recorded in the
government-wide financtal statements. No County employee is allowed to accumulate vacation days.
The County allows employees ten personal days per year in lieu of sick days.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINCIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash balances available for investment by the majority of County funds are maintained in pooled bank
and investment accounts to improve investment opportunities. Income from investment of pooled cash

i3 allocated to the participating County funds on a percentage of pool ownership basis.

Cash and investments made by the County are summarized below according to the following three
credit risk categories:

Category #1 includes deposits and temporary investments that are insured by FDIC or registered or for
which the securities are held by the County or its agent in the County's name,

Category #2 includes uninsured and unregistered deposits and temporary investments for which
securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent, in the County’s name.

Category #3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the County’s name.

Cash
The following table categorizes deposits according to levels of risk.
Category _ Bank Carrying
#1 #2 #3 Balance Amount
Direct bank obligations $ 424,871 § 16,364,392 § - § 16,789,263 § 15,221,888
Money market accounts - - 1,269 1,265 1,268
Tatal cash $ 424871 $ 16364392 § 1,269 $ 16,790,532 $ 15,223,157

The following table categorizes investments according to levels of risk.

Category Market Carrying
#1 #2 #3 Value Value
Temporary investments
Certificates of
deposit § 640011 $§ 8083902 $ 99356 $ 8823269 § 8733,105

In addition to the above, the County had $1,817,836 invested in U.S. Government Mutual Funds and
$1,926,643 invested in Tllinois First Funds.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on or before
the last Monday in December and are intended to finance the County's new fiscal year beginning
December 1. The combined tax rate of the County for the year ended November 30, 2003 was
$1.3171 per $100 of assessed valuation. For budgetary purposes, taxes are recognized as revenue in
the pertod in which they are intended to finance.

NOTE 3 - ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE RECEIVABLES

The County’s receivables are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts for the Nursing
Home enterprise fund in the amount of $100,000.
NOTE 4 - INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Individual ﬁmd interfund receivable and payable (due to/due from other funds) at November 30, 2003
were as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable
Fund

General Fund $ 219337 § -

Special Revenue Funds:
Health Department 70 -
Indemnity 21,880 -
County Clerk Vital Records 920 -
FICA 1,167,286 -
Tllinois Mumicipal Retirement 436,305 -
Court Support 7,674 -
Court Document Storage 2,822 -
Courthouse Automation 4,810 -
Courthouse Security 9,919 -
Recorder's Special Fee 5,100 -
Law Library 1,854 -
Probation Service 10,348 -
Treasurer's Automation 10,940 -
County Motor Fuel Tax 36,950 -
Township Motor Fuel Tax - 36,950
Total special revenue funds 1,716,878 36,950
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Pavable

Enterprise Funds:

Nursing Home 3 - § 1.025688
Internal Service 57.695 ~
Agency Funds:

Restitution 3,828 8,276

County Collector - 785,017

County Clerk 4,376 5,794

Circuit Clerk - 107,086

Recorder - 30,273

Work Release - 3.030

Total trust and agency funds 8.204 939,476
TOTAL $ 2002114 $2002.114

The amounts due to/from other funds are for routine and recurring interfund charges, except for the
loan from the General Fund to the Nursing Home, which was for assistance in funding operations.

Interfund transfers for the year ended November 30, 2003 consisted of the following:

Transfers to General Fund from:

Non-major governmental fands $ 188467
Transfers to Health Department Fund from:

Solid Waste Fund $_ 109,032
Transfers to Non-major Governmental Funds from:

General Fund $ 341218
Transfer to Nursing Home Fund from:

Nursmg Home Farm Fund $ 15000

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund collecting them to the fund that statute or
budget reflects to expend them and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected to finance various programs
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 5 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT
Durning fiscal year ended November 30, 2003 the County's general long-term debt consisted of

obligations under capital leases and unpaid Option I days. Changes in long-term debt for the year
ended November 30, 2003 are as follows:

Balance Balance
November 30, November 30,
2002 Additions  Deductions 2003
Accumulated unpaid Option If days $ 56,198 § 2229 % - 3 58,427
Juvenile Detention Center lease 4,685.000 - 165,000 4,520,000
TOTAL $ 4741.198 $§ 2229 $ 165000 3§ 4578427

Juvenile Detention Center lease

$5,000,000 Juvenile Detention Center lease with the Danville Public Building Commission, due in
annual mstallments as shown below through November 1, 2019, including interest at varying rates from
4.2% to 8.0%.

The following is a schedule of the minimum lease payments required under the remaining capital lease:

Total Principal Interest

Fiscal Year

2004 $ 426,171 $ 175000 § 251,171
2005 423 005 180,000 243,005
2006 424308 190,000 234,308
2007 426,595 205,000 221,595
2008 424,595 220,000 204,595
2009-2013 2,133,679 1,350,000 783,679
2014-2018 2,148,738 1,780,000 368,738
2019 431,550 420,000 11,550
TOTAL $6.838.641 $4 520,000 § 2318641

Interest cost incurred on general long-term debt by the County during the year ended November 30,
2003 totaled $258,824.

NOTE 6 - LEASE AGREEMENTS

Juvenile Detention Center lease

The County entered into a lease agreement with the Danville Public Building Commission, wherein the
Commission constructed a juvenile detention center and is leasing it to Vermilion County for a period
beginning on November 1, 2001 and ending on December 31, 2019.

The annual rent is due on or before November 1 of each year as detailed in Note 5.

At the end of the lease, the title to the site and all remaining assets will revert back to the County.

In accordance with the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 13
(FASB 13) Accounting for Leases, the County capitalized the lease obligation at the fair market value
of the property at the inception of the lease. However, since the County does not record fixed assets,
the value of the property has not been reflected in the financial statements.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 6 - LEASE AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED}

Sales tax is collected in the Law Enforcement Special Revenue Fund to provide for payments on the
lease.

Public Safety Building lease

A lease agreement was entered into as of October 8, 1984 wherein the Danville Public Building
Commission agreed to lease the Public Safety Building to the City of Danville and the County for their
joint use. This agreement includes the operations of a Joint Communications Center whose costs are
divided and apportioned equally between the County and City. The agreement provides also for the
salaries and fringe benefits of "leased" employees whose costs are apportioned solely to the County.

An additional lease was entered into as of June 18, 2001 with the Danville Public Building Commission
for the purpose of expanding and improving the Public Safety Building.

If in any year, the rental payments are in excess of funds required, the Danville Public Building
Commission refunds the excess to the City and County. If in any year, the rental payments are
insufficient, the Commission shall provide only those services that it can with whatever funds are

available.

The following is a schedule of the minimum lease payments required under the leases:

Fiscal Year
2004 $ 3,013,747
2005 68,966
2006 70,301
2007 66,419
2008 67,373
2008-2013 327,351
2014-2018 302,815
2019-2020 535,836
Total $.5352.808

Lease expense for the year ended November 30, 2003 was $3,797,061.

NOTE 7 - ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
The most recent information available is for the year ended December 31, 2002.
Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Other Qualified Vermilion County Employees

Plan Description

The County’s (Employer) defined benefit pension plan, Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF),
provides retirement, disability, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. IMRF acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local governments
and school districts in Illinois. The Illinois Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the plan
that can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 7 - ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND (CONTINUED)
Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Other Qualified Vermilion County Employees (Continued)

Plan Description (Continued)

Employees participating in IMRF are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered
salary. The member rate is established by state statute. The County is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. The County’s rate for calendar year 2002 was 0.98 percent of payroll.
The County’s contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the IMRF Board of
Trustees. IMRF’s unfunded actuanal accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on a closed basis (overfunded liability amortized on open basis). The amortization
period at December 31, 2002 was 10 years,

For December 31, 2002, the County’s annual pension cost of $127,656 was equal to the County’s
required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the December
31, 2000 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected salary
increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to inflation, (c¢) additional projected salary increases ranging
from 0.4% to 11.6% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d)
post-retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of IMRF assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over
a five-year period. The assumptions used for the 2002 actuarial valuation were based on the 1996-
1998 experience study.

TREND INFORMATION
Actuarial Annual Percentage Net
VYaluation Pension of APC Pension
Date Cost (APCY Contributed Obligation
12/31/02 $ 127,656 100% $ -
12/31/01 113,380 100% -
12/31/00 272374 100% -
Digest of Changes
Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarial accrued liability for 2002 were changed due
to the 1999-2001 Experience Study. The principal changes were:

¢ Fewer members are expected to take refunds early in their career
¢ For Regular members, fewer normal and early retirements are expected to occur
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 7 - ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND (CONTINUED)
Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Sherifs Law Enforcement Personnel

Plan Description

The County’s (Employer) defined benefit pension plan, [llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF),
provides retirement, disability, anmual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. IMRF acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local governments
and school districts in TMinois. The Ilinois Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the plan
that can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.

Employees participating in IMRF are required to contribute 6.50 percent of their annual covered
salary. The member rate is established by state statute. The County is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. The County’s rate for calendar year 2002 was 12.71 percent of payroll.
The County’s contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the IMRF Board of
Trustees. IMRF’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on a closed basis (overfunded fiability amortized on open basis). The amortization
period at December 31, 2002 was 30 years.

For December 31, 2002, the County’s annual pension cost of $188,235 was equal to the County’s
required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the December
31, 2000 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return {net of administrative expenses), (b) projected salary
increases of 4.00% a vear, attributable to inflation, {c) additional projected salary increases ranging
from 0.4% to 11.6% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d)
post-retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of IMRF assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over
a five-year period. The assumptions used for the 2002 actuarial valuation were based on the 1996-

1998 experience study.

TREND INFORMATION
Actuarial Annual Percentage Net
Valuation Pension of APC Pension
Date Cost (APC Contributed Obligation
12/31/02 $§ 188,235 100% $ -
12/31/01 195,691 100% -
12/31/00 181,556 100% -
Digest of Changes
Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarial accrued liability for 2002 were changed due
to the 1999-2001 Experience Study. The principal changes were:

e Fewer members are expected to take refunds early in their career
e For Regular members, fewer normal and early retirements are expected to occur
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 7 - ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND (CONTINUED)
Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Elected County Officials
Plan Description

The County’s (Employer) defined benefit penston plan, Illinois Municipal Retirement (IMRF), provides
retirement, disability, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. IMRF acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local governments and
schoot districts in Illinois. The Tilinois Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the plan that
can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.

Employees participating in IMRF are required to contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered
salary. The member rate is established by state statute. The County is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate. The County’s rate for calendar year 2002 was 48.9 percent of payroll.
The County’s contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the IMRF Board of
Trustees. IMRF’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on a closed basis (overfunded liability amortized on open basis). The amortization
period at December 31, 2002 was 30 years.

For December 31, 2002, the County’s annual pension cost of $348,508 was equal to the County’s
required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the December
31, 2000 actuarial valuation using the entry age actvarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected salary
increases of 4.00% a year, attributabie to inflation, {c) additional projected salary increases ranging
from 0.4% to 11.6% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and {(d)
post-retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of IMRF assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effects of shori-term volatility in the market value of investments over
a five-year period. The assumptions used for the 2002 actuarial valuation were based on the 1996-
1998 experience study.

TREND INFORMATION
Actuarial Annual Percentage Net
Valuation Pension of APC Pension
Date Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/02 $ 348,508 100% $ -
12/31/01 243 894 100% -
12/31/00 212 461 100% -
Digest of Changes
Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarial accrued Hability for 2002 were changed due
to the 1999-2001 Experience Study. The principal changes were:

¢ Fewer members are expected to take refunds early in their career
¢ For Regular members, fewer normal and early retirements are expected to occur
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 8 - STATE AND FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS

The County participates in a number of state and federally assisted programs. Federal programs are
audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act and have not resulted in any disallowed costs.
However, grantor agencies may provide for further examinations. Based on prior experience, the
County believes further examinations would not result in any material disallowed costs.

NOTE 9 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Expenditures Over Budget
The following individual funds incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations:

Liability Insurance

Vermilion Manor Nursing Home
Hlinois Municipal Retirement
Recorders Special Fee

Law Enforcement Grant

Deficit Fund Balance
The following individual find maintains deficit fund balances as of November 30, 2003:

Victim Witness Attorney General $ 365
The Victim Witness Attorney General deficit was reduced in the current year and is expected to be
liquidated through a transfer from the general fund.

NOTE 10 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The County maintains three Enterprise Funds. The Nursing Home and County Farm provide nursing
home care and land utilization services. The Solid Waste Management Fund provides management
services for the County’s solid waste issues. Segment information for the year ended November 30,
2003 is as follows:

Vermilion
Manor Vermilion
Nursing County Solid Waste
Home Farm Management Total

Operating revenues $§ 7991255 § 65380 $ 410,503 $ 8,467,138
Depreciation 200,880 - 12,625 213,505
Operating income 246,064 41,979 22,462 310,505
Operating transfers in (out) 15,000 (15,000)  (109,032) (109,032)
Property and equipment additions 41,087 - - 41,087
Change in net assets 257,484 26,979 (80,500) 203,963
Net working capital 438 988 31,298 516,626 986,912
Total assets 3,880,834 32,298 593,943 4,507,075
Total equity 2,377,118 32,298 561,936 2,971,352
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 10 — SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FIXED ASSETS
Nursing Home
Balance Balance
December 1, November 30,
20602 Additions Disposals 2003
Buildings $5,454 814 § 4 800 $ - $5,459,614
Transportation equipment 91,528 - - 91,528
Other equipment 971.897 36,287 - 1,008.184
6,518,239 41,087 - 6,559,326
Less accumulated depreciation (4,420.316) (200,880} - _ (4,621,196}
Total $2097923 $ (159793 § - $ 1938130
County Farm
Balance Balance
December 1, November 30,
2002 Additions Disposals 2003
Land h 1,000 $ - $ - 3 1,000
Solid Waste Management
Bailance Balance
December 1, November 30,
2002 Additions Disposals 2003
Buildings $ 19,000 $ - $ - § 19000
Recycling equipment 96,610 - - 96,610
Other equipment 30,882 - - 30,882
146,492 - - 146,492
Less accumulated depreciation (88,557} (12.625) - (101,182)
Total 3 57935 § (12625 3 - § 45310

The Nursing Home Fund and the Solid Waste Management Fund are budgeted as part of the County's
normal budget process.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 11 - JOINT VENTURES
The following disclosures are required for Vermilion County's joint ventures.
Danville Public Building Commission

The Danville Public Building Commission was organized under the provisions of the "Public Building
Commission Act of the State of Illinois" to enable the erecting, equipping and providing of modern
public buildings to space and house the various branches, departments and agencies of government in
the County Seat of Vermilion County, [llinois.

The officials of the Danville Public Building Commission are appointed by the City of Danville,
Danville Sanitary District, Danville School District #118 and Vermilion County.

Through the appointment of one commission official, the County has indirect control over the
Commussion's budgeting and financing. However, all capital improvement projects financed by the
Commission must be approved by the City of Danville, Vermilion County and the Public Safety
Building Commission.

Vermilion County Emergency Telephone Sysiem Board

The Vemilion County Emergency Telephone System Board was established under an
intergovernmental agreement between the County, the City of Danville, and the City of Hoopeston.
This agreement was pursuant to the State of Illinois enacting the Emergency Telephone System Act,
Chapter 134, Section 31 - 46 of the lfinois Revised Statutes. The Vermilion County Emergency
Telephone System Board is a joint board established specifically for the purpose of providing and
maintaining emergency telephone systems.

Vermilion County provides bookkeeping and investing services at no cost to the Emergency Telephone
System Board.

NOTE 12 - SELF-FUNDED INSURANCE

The County is self-funded for workers’ compensation insurance coverage which is accounted for in a
separate internal service fund (Liability Insurance Fund). The coverage is administered by an
independent company. The County’s risk retention is $225,000 per individual per claim up to
$2,000,000 in aggregate over a one-year period. Actual claims paid in fiscal year 2003 were $300,256.

GASB Statement 10 requires that a liability for claims be reported if the liability is both probable and
can be reasonably estimated. The liabilities for unpaid claims are determined by the independent plan
administrator. The estimated claims payable for claims reported at November 30, 2003 was $358,583.
The Hability for claims incurred but not reported was estimated to range between $73,100 and
$188,913. Based on this range, the County reflected a total liability for unpaid claims in the
accompanying financial statements of $500,000.
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VERMILICN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 12 — SELF-FUNDED INSURANCE (CONTINUED)

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during fiscal year 2003 were as follows:

Estimated Estimated
Liability Incurred Liability
December 1, and Claim November 30,
2002 Estimated Claims Payments 2603

$ 436,103 $ 364,153 $ 300,256 $ 500,000
Estimated Estimated
Liability Incurred Liability
December 1, and Claim November 30,
2001 Estimated Claims Pavments 2002

$ 300,000 $ 504,570 $ 368467 $ 436,103

The County’s health and liability insurance risks are covered with a commercial carrier.
The County uses the reimbursement method in processing unemployment claims.
NOTE 13 - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Effective December 1, 2003, the County adopted Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), Basic Financial Statements — and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
~ for State and Local Governments, This statement establishes new financial statement reporting
requirements for all state and local governments. It creates new information and restructures much of
the information that is currently presented in the financial statements. Adjustments to governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds resulting from the change to comply with this statement are treated as
adjustments of prior periods, and financial statements presented for the periods affected are restated
unless restatement is not practical.

The County adopted GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governmenis: Omnibus, simultaneously with
Statement No. 34. This statement amends Statement No. 34 to clarify or modify certain provisions.

In connection with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, certain adjustments have been
made to net assets as of November 30, 2002. The following schedule summarizes the adjustments
made:

Net assets, November 30, 2002, as originally stated - $ 26,392,681
Adjustment to reclassify amount to be provided for long-term debt (4,741,198}
Adjustment to recognize net assets of the Internal Service Fund 645,287
Net assets, November 30, 2002, as restated $ 22296770

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year Ended November 30, 2003

Yariance with
Final Budget

Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actnal (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,330,000 $ 1330,000 $ 1,319518 % (10,482)
Intergovernmental 5,661,610 5,715,395 5,291,277 (424,118)
Licenses and permits 23,000 23,000 22,975 (25)
Charges for services 1,376,500 1,376,560 1,308,717 (67,783
Fines and forfeits 385,000 385,000 268,259 (116,741}
Miscetlanecus 557,600 357,600 530,942 (26,658)
Total revenues 9,333,710 9,387,495 8,741,688 (645,807)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
County Board 265,100 265,100 260,229 4,871
County Auditor 84,953 84,953 73,688 11,265
Data Processing 227,400 228,600 226,895 1,705
County Treasurer 196,661 190,661 188,484 2,177
Non-Department Services 402,549 487,349 486,764 585
Capital Cutlay 225,000 226,475 214,494 11,981
Merit Commission 13,662 13,662 13,249 413
Regional Superintendent of Schools 61,220 91,220 85,765 5,455
County Clerk 417,771 417,771 388,136 19,635
County Recorder 155,696 155,696 145,104 10,592
Other 537,000 537,000 600,161 (63,161)
Election Commission 228,693 228693 210,322 18,371
Board of Review 51,300 51,500 50,363 937
Supervisor of Assessments 262,451 262,451 244,707 17,744
Buildings and Grounds 652,004 663,400 664 540 (L140)
Total General Government 3,805,460 3,904,351 3,862,901 41,430
Judiciary and Court Related
Circuit Clerk 501,285 501,285 462,481 8,804
States Attorney 780,518 790,518 784,314 6,204
Probation 821,110 921,110 921,110 -
Judiciary and Ruies 338,793 338,793 322,337 16,456
Cotlection Program 31,100 31,100 30,900 200
Public Defender 290,890 290,890 288,093 2,797
Tozat Judiciary and Court Related 2,763,666 2,873,696 2,839,235 34,461
Public Safety
Sheriff 1,849,100 1,849,100 1,798,935 50,165
Juvenile Detention Centar 1,226,008 1,226,008 1,114,095 111,913
Emergency Services Disaster Agency 153,286 217,896 211,236 8,660
Coroner 139274 176,274 148,223 28051
Total Public Safety 3,367,668 3,469.278 3,272,489 196,789
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year Ended November 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Public Health
Weed Commission 5 G,820 5 9,820 $ 5,519 % 1
Total expenditures G 946,644 10,257 125 9,984,444 272,681
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures (612,934} (869,630} (1,242,756) {373,126)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 850,000 350,000 188,467 (161,533)
Operating transfers out (126,786} (126,736} (341218) (214.432)
Total other financing sources (uses) 723,214 223214 (152,751} (375,965)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
experditures and other finrancing
sources {uses) $§ 110280 $ (646416) (1,395507)  §  (749.091)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,790,428
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 5394921
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE - HEALTH DEPARTMENT
Year Ended November 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes 3 233,260 b 233,260 A 226,002 b (7.258)
Tntergovernmental 2,343,396 2,419,240 2,283,211 (136,029)
Charges for services 313,904 313,904 345,322 31,418
Miscetlaneous - 12,000 7.912 (4,088)
Total revenues 2,890,560 2,978,404 2,862,447 (115,937
EXPENDITURES
Carrent:
Public health 3,011,593 3,057,437 2,846,876 210,561
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (121,033 (79,033) 15,571 94,604
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 121,032 109,032 109,032 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
sources (uises) $ Iy $ 29,999 124,603 b 94,604
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 315,852
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 440,455
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING RENT
Year Ended November 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Favorable
Budget Badget Actunal {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes $§ 2,747,080 $ 2,747,080 $ 2,672,170 5 (74,910}
Intergovernmental 1,885,000 1,883,000 1,904,279 19,279
Miscellaneous 85,000 83,000 57,135 (27,863)
Totat revenues 4,717,080 4,717,080 4,633,584 (83,496)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety 5,360,803 6,143,763 5,403,943 739,820
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures $  (643,723)  § (1.,426.,683) (770,359y 8§ 656,324
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,301,503
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 5,531,144
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MAJOR FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE - COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TAX
Year Ended November 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorabie)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 5 1,520,000 § 1,520,000 $ 1,416,029 b (103,971)
Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000 61,416 51,416
Total revenues 1,530,000 1,530,000 1,477,445 (52,335)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 1,685,560 1,685,500 1,391,448 204052
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures | by (1553,500) $ {155,300) 85,997 S 241,497
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,434,146
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,520,143

37



8¢

Y6LE OL
2( P[noA OTIB1 papury a1 nmwmmﬂ loxewr ¥ uD) .Nhonmownm% ST 2007 n_ £ 19qQuada(] JO SE §19588 JO anjeA Jelienide oy} nmmmMnm INjeA J23Iewt B u()
%000 LOETLET  %EL'101 (99€%95) I6TLL6'Y  LS9'EE0’S 00/1€/21
%00°0 9 TLY L %STPOT (z59'800)  S65°806'%  LKTLII'S 10/TE/C]
%88°01 0001841 § %T0'L6 6LI'I9L §  €TV'SIv'S § ¥hThST's § To/1E/T
G/e=q)) )] a7%) (v-q) ) (¥) Ne(q
neakeg [e1deg oney 1vvn) By Anuyq S]ASS Y wonpen[eA
PaIaA0)) Pa1aAG) papunyg Tvv  (IVV) Anpqery  jo anjep ferrengoy

JUEFITICARER papunjup PNV pLENnY

€ SETVVN [eLenay

TANNOSHAd INTWEIHOANA AV'T S AITHANS
NI INFNTHLLEY TYJIDINAA STONT TR

68148
94 PINoM ORI popuiy o1l “m_m.m@ IRt 2 u) .menhmonhﬁw 172002 ‘1€ J9qUI303(] JO SB §19558 JO ofjeA Jelrenior 2] nm_mwa A JoIeUl B U
%6000 Z8TTI0T0L  %91°6k1 Amaﬁmmm,ww SSYLPELT  8PO'SLS'ST 00/1€/21
%000 PZr69S 1 %8L'8ET (96L°98V'L)  ELEHOE6T  691°16L°9¢ L0/1€/T1
%000 T60°9Z0°El §  %$8'0CT (hLE'SETY)S  8SETICOTS TELLYSYTS o/1€/21
B/(e-q)) ©) (qe) (®-q) @ ®) STE(
noakeg HoaAvg oney (Tvvn) 28y Anuyg s1assY uonEnfes
Pa13A0) PAI2A0) papuny vV (IVV) Lnpqery  joanjep [eLEny

Jo a3ejuddaog papumyun PRIy eLEnPYy

B Se VYV feLEny

STTAOTINE ALNNOD NOI'TINTIA aHAriva0
NN INTNTILLTY TVAIOINNIN SIONITTE

(panpneun)

€007 “0€ JPQIAON PIPU I¥IX
SSTEDOUd ONIANAA A0 STTNATHDS
NOILVINHOUINI ATVINANTTIIAS ATIINOTI
SIONTTTI ‘AINNOD NOI'TINSHA



i13

"%00'0 2q Pinom oRI poputly oyl ‘siseq Jotew B UQ (£68°10€)$ ST Z00Z 1€ 12qUUada(] JO SE SI9SSE JO ON[RA [ELIBNI0R ) ‘SISeq SNJRA JoIRW € U()

%LT6LS 655 0SS %60°2T 90T 681 ISKE60T  SLTV06
%E0'60S  659°86S %000 SYELPO'E  SYT'E96T  (001%8)
%609LY  S69TIL § %90 BEO'E6E'E §  L60SIV'E § 650TT
Q7E-q)) 0) (a7e) (&-q) @ ®]
noaeg oxieg oney vvn) Yy Anuy §)98SY
paRAC)  pamaso))  papung TVY  (TvV) Smqery joanep
Jo agejuadiog papunjui) panIIYVY eLEnpRY
€ SeIVV( [eLrenloy

STVIDIIA0 ALNAOD GALOATA
GNOF INFNTHLLAY TVAIDINNIA SIONITTI

(panpnenpy)

€007 ncm ..QH_EQEZ ﬂuﬁ:ﬁ .—ﬁ@kﬁ
SSTADOUd HONIANNA 40 STINAAHDS
NOLLVIN¥OANI AUVINANTIILNS da8INOTT
SIONI'TTI ‘ALNNOD NOTTTIANAA

$

00/1€/T1
10/LE/T1
cO/LE/T1

Aeq
oA
[eLIEn)Y



OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

40



54

$91°7T $  TOF09L $ 971'658°] $ SE6bS $  TS819¢1 $ ADNVIVE ONNA
ANV STILIHIVIT TVLOL

9€6°0T T0F091 STLHSTL CHO°LE 08L°16F (LIDIAQ TDNVIVE GNNA

6771 - 86E°F0L oLl TLOOLL sani[igel] (B0

- - L09°T99 - 295°09/. Jnu34AdI panyfag
. - SIUAUIIAA0T JOU30 01 an(]
- - - - - spuny 1o o1 sng

0sL - 08£°6E 6176 #8s°1 Jj01ied paniooy
6LY $ - $ 452" $ [e8'L $  0T6L $ a[geAed stunoooy
SHILIIVIT
QTTE $  Torosl $  9TI'6S8T $ CEH'YS $§ TSI} $ SEASSY IV.LOL
- - - - - SJUOUIIIDAOT 19110 WOoIf an(]
0¢6 088°1¢ - - - SPUN JAUI0 WO} an(]
B - - - - swa)l predar]
- [44Y Lyl - £99 =00
- - L09°799 - 89509/ S3[Q1102]| 00U POTBUI[ISS

J0J 90UBMO}|E JO Jou ‘saxe],
'SO[ARAI0DY

- 000°8Et 000009 - 000°5LT sjuswysaAul Anesoduws[,
S¥TIT $ - $ TLOS6S $ SEG'YS $ 129'ste $ YseD
SPI033Y TENA AJraEuEa pay fioneiod ey pieog
131D AHunoyy -SUEL ], [Bunuy Preay
[BIUOTA]
£007 ‘0¢ JaqwiaAoN

SANNH TYLNIWNYIAOD HOrvIINON
J33HS IONVYIVE ONINIGNOD
SIONITTI ‘ALNNOD NOITINYEA



[A4

£69°F1 ¢€6'59 § 69LY61 $ POTO¥ET g 81.°920°C
638°01 86L9Y [FARTZ OLF 1SS Tr6'9LE’l
v08°c LEE'G] 8¥9°0% PSO68L 9LL'6RY
€0t'T 16811 £re’le 7W0'1LY ¥81°C19
1041 98T'L $  segel $  TEOBII $ 439 7
€69V SE6°59 $ 69161 $  varore $ 81L°970°C
- - - S0E9tY 98T°LILT
- 09 8tt ¥ L
£0v'T 16811 £1g'ie TT0°LL9 v81°619
- 000'sT 000°0F1 000°SL, 000°06
062°C1 ¥T0'6T $ 8II°cT § £11°851 3 1TT¥S1
£ BRIy oMAIDG T B3Iy 901AIRY IRV AR ER ECETTEATTES Y | Void
jeadg Jenadyg [eadg rediungy
30N I FEUIN] N spouni

€002 ‘0€ JeqianoN
SANNL TYLINIWNYIAOD HOrYIINON

139HS IONVYIVE ONINIGNOD
SIONITH ‘ALNNOD NOFTINYAA

AINVIVE AONOA
ANV SALLITIEVITIV.LOL

(LIDIIA) AINYIVE ANAA

SOMMIQRI] 210

SNUADI PALIBIA(]
SluatLRA0S 1210 01 an(g
Spunj Iajo o1 ang
fj04ed panmoy

a1qeded slunossy

STLLITIAVIT

SLASSV IViOL

SIRWUISA0T D10 Wodf St(]
SpUNJ JAY10 WOl an(]
swan piedarg

B0

S3[qHI2[[00UN PAjRIISS

TOJ 20UBMO[[8 JO JoU “SIXEB |,
189[BAIDI0Y]
sjustupsaat Arerodus g
Uses



194

Ho°0L $ 6L9°8LT $  BILLEL $ 805 £99°1 $ TEE1ST
51T°69 £T6°15T Z06°C01 SR I STS6hT
6ZH'1 9697 91Z°CE YT £08°1

- - - PEC'EOE -
6TF1 - 9IL - -

- $ 964'9¢ $  00s'I€ $ 619°LT $ LOS°T
PP90L $ 6L98LT $  SILLEY $ 805°£99°1 $ TEE'16T
616°6 018t 728 - PLOL

- - - PrseI -

- - - FECiE0E -

- - - 000°006 -
$TL09 $ 698°€LT $  968°%E1 $ O£+ TV $ 859°CFT

LYTREIRETS uenEGiomy By AT Fpug jioddng
iN)ililg ) }Jane)) Um0y Apunon) uney
1Ny

£00Z ‘0¢ JoqiuaAON
SANNA TYLNIWNHIAOD HOrvYIWNON
133HS FONYIVH ONINIGWOD
SIONITI ‘ALNNOD NOIMINYIA

ADNVTVE NN
ANV SATLIHIVITTVLOL

(LIDIEA) IDINVIVE ONNA

SIIqEI] B0

BNUIAIT PALIJOC]
SIUWUIAACT Jou10 01 3n(]
spunj J3Y6 0] an(T
fjorded pansoy

ajqeded siunosoy

SHILITIEVIT

SLASSV TV.LOL

SIIRUTIRACT J2UI0 WO ang]
SpUNJ I9110 WOLF SN(]
surali predarg

B0

§0]qQI199{[0TUN PAIBUISD

0] 20UBMO[[E JO 13U ‘5oL,
:s0[qeATa0Y
spuoumsaaut Axerodia g,
RELe



44

S6FHST $ 141091 $ €12°667 $ 61L°8 LSFVTI $
100°1#T [LF°091 9L6°LOT SET'L 789'807
e el - LET16 FRFL CLLST
- - 056°9¢ - -
PE¥ Ll $ - $ L8TVS $ ¥9¥'1 SLL'SY $
S6¥HST 3 LLYP091T $ £17°66Z $ 61L°8 LSYveEl $
- - L899I - -
FE01 - - F58°1 001°s
- 87738 L87T - -
LYTvhe $ £¥TTL $ 6£2°051 $ £98°0 LSEGII $
ERTTWETS Lioddng XeJ Py RIeiqry a3y [EadS
woyeqo.Ly P J0XOJA] N | s Japs030y
dyysumoy,

£00Z ‘0¢ toquuanoN

SAUNNH TYLINIWNYIAOD HOrvAINON

133HS AONVIVE ONINIBNOD
SIONITH ‘ALNNOD NOIIAYIA

AINVIVH AN
ANV SHLLITIIVIT IVLOL

(LIDIAAA) AONY IV aNNA

SOUN[[qeI] (810,

SNU2AZI PaLIafa(]

SIUSTIUIIAGE JaYI0 01 a0(Y

spunj Jeue o1 ang
oxfed panacoy
a1qeded sjunosoy

SHILI'HAVI'T

SLASSY TY.LOL

SIURWUIDA0T L2110 W an(]
Spuny I1sY10 WO an(y

sumt predorg
20

S2[QH09[[00UN PIIRUIEISY
J0J 20UBMO[B JO 10U ‘Saxe ],

152GRALINY

syuaunsaAur Arsroduws

yse)



Gb

£92°0¢ ¢ LSS°6T0T $ 8LIFT $ Or'61T $ 96" 0
- LSS620°T 8¥1°eT 668°EET 870°6¢
€97°0¢ - 0£0'1 £9¢°¢8 gi6°1
£97°0¢ - - - -
- $ - $ DEO'L $ 59568 $ 816°1
£97°0¢ $ LSS6T0°T S AR $ ¥Or'61z $ 9r6‘0F
- £1¥'887 - - -
- - - - 0F6°01
- CRTECY - - -
- 6571 - - -
- 795°6k6 - - .
£97°0¢ $ QE0°L9¢ $ BLIYHE $ $O1°61¢ $ 900°0€
TS puny ping Ispug uonvmoyny
R0y U JUAUIDXOJU Suajossy diysumoy, S.Ia.nsgaL
MET Mmey AIsNIL, DA

£00Z ‘0€ 1aqudAON
SANNA TYLINIWNYIAOD HOrviNNON
1JIHS IONVYIVE ONINIGNOD
SIONITH “ALNNOD NOITINMIA

HONVIVE AN
ANV SHILITIEVITTVLOL

(LIDIAAM ANV IV GNNA

SaMIqEY} [E10],

NUIAI PAIAI(]
SYUDEIULEIAOT 19110 0] AN¢]
SputLy J9ylo o1 angg
foxked peniooy

aqeied SjUNooY
SULLITIEVIT

SLASSY TVLOL

SIUSWUIOACT 1210 WOL anc]
Spuny L3I0 woly ongy
swal predarg

Y10

SA[YNI3[[O0UN PATBEUNSS

J0J 20UBMO[]R JO JoU ‘SaXB |,
SO[GRAIOY]
siusunsaauy Lrerodws |,
yseD



oF

870°9¢ $ S60°LY $ 0LT9E 5 0TF6E §TP'S g
870°9¢ 69 - SLERE (c9¢€)
- 9Z0°LY 0LZ9¢ SHO°l 06L°¢
- - - - SLY
- F06°0€ 0LT'9¢ - -
- - - - 16
- g ZT191 $ - $ ShO‘T -
320°0¢ g S60°LY $ 0.7°9¢ 3 0zF'6t ST¥'S $
- - 0L2°9¢ - -
320°9¢ $ S60°LY $ - $ 0zTh6e STHS $
uonvuioaty SIN0IIEN S uoneqorj ELAETE1)
SID [euondIpsLINp pue JusmIUIjEo)) fauwropy
“Ingy awoy SSIUN AN WIDI A

SANNA TVINIANYIAOD HOrvINNON

£00Z ‘0¢€ J8qW3AON

L3AdHS IONVIVE ONINIGWNOD
SIONITTI ‘ALNNOD NOFTIINYIA

HINVIVE ANNA

ANV SHILLITIGVIT TV.LOL

(LA TDNYIVE ONNA

SAHIQRI] [0 L

SNUIADI PALIJS(]
siuaUIUIAA0F Jayle 0} an(]
spuny 1ay1o o} angg
Noifed ponuooy

3[qeded sUUNOXYY
SULLIHTavIT

SLASSY TVLOL

SIURLILISAOT JB1)0 WOo1f ongf
SpUNJ 1010 wWoiy ang|
syt predar ]

=liitel

S2[QUIIS{[O0UN PITBLUIISD

0] OUEMO[[B JO 191 ‘saxE ],
1SO[qRAIONY
siusugsoaty Lierodura f
ysed



A4

17608171

879°091 h)

086.68¢ 3

0791

S L%

STETIT01

229°091

086°63C

0791

TLL'C96

910°%69L°¢

079°E60°E
PLI'LY
056°9¢
£61°0S
6L9°1TS

LPG'08EFT

086°68T 3

$ TLL'S96

OLE LFY
268°6L9°1
§87'CSH
$H0°101
78F°850°¢

0S¥ 18877
v 590

879°091 3

R ERETBEX T
dng Say

T60°1

888°88¢

qse)
FUDLIo A

079°1

SUGTI01
Jo pavoyg

£00Z ‘0¢ JoquanonN

SANNA TYLINIWNYIAOD HOrvINNON

133HS FONVIVE DNINIGNCD

SIONITTI ‘ALNNGS NOIINYTA

LESE

000006
$ SiTT9

Taaloag

tende)

HIONVIVE ANOJI
ANV SHLLI'TIIYIT TV LOL

(LIDIIAQ) BINVIVE ANNA

SSNLIqR]] [EI0],

SNU2AAIL paALIAI(]

SHRUWURAOT 10410 0} an(]

Spuny Jatjo o1 an(]
jjoaked paniooy
opqeied sjunoosy

SHLLITIFVIT

SLASSY TY.LOL

SIURWUIIACS IS0 WoLJ at(]
SPUNJ JaL10 W] ang]

sursj predarg
BP0

SO[qLIOS[[OTUN PABUH]SD
10y 20uUBMO[[E JO JAU ‘Saxe],

180[BAIR00Y

SjUIWSIAUL Arzioduwe ],

yseD



ar

Zre9Ee’l §  9860T  §  TOPO09L  §  STLWSIT § SAYLE 08L'16k  § HVIA JO ONT (LEDIIEA) TONVEVT AN
0610rY' £EC9 zI681 0LOH90°1 {09t'5) 916'C6Y UVAA AO ONINNTOTH (LEIARA) ADNVIVE NI
(svz'col) £0LY1 (0:L°37) 859°06 sS1'eh AN {sesn) seainos Buraueusy
1310 pue sampusdxa 1340
$INUADI JO (ADUINO1JOpP) S500XH

- ono'sl (z6T'Lo) - 9817071 - (a51) §928N08 FupduRLY I9YI0 1O

- - (ZaT L) - - - mo s13)suen FuneredQy

- 000°s | - - 0982'071 - 13 s19jsuen Sureledoy

(SASN) STIUNOS ONIINVNIA FTHLO
(gpe’c0n) (L6T) £8573¢ 859706 (ige9°cq) (CIINA] se1Ipuade a0
SONUASE JO (AOUDI1IOP) 5599y
86799°T LO§'61 - LI AASS £50°SLE C06°ZSL salnypuadza [elo],

» n T 2 T = sjaaford (enden

- - - - - - redround - 2014398 162¢7

- N - 8EY'TSS - - voneyodsusL],

- - - - - T06'TSL ey atjang
0£5°89F - - - £50°CLT - ArJes oliangd
S1Z'so - - - - - palB[a 109 pug A1eoipng
£$5¢o8 £08‘s1 - N - - RISWISACT [B10U8D)

STUNLIANAIXTE
0S0°E9IT IEE 78CBE S60°CHY T ol 99L°0¢L SAUAIL B30T,
Sor'y 8Ll 1097 gse9l 108 1L5°¢ SN0 [2ISTA

- ZELFI 186'SE - 821 - §991A138 10} 53wy

) ) - - £64°061 - snurtad puy sogusory
vLS8LS - - - - - A BETH R AR |
1LE°085 % - $ - § s § - SILL 8 saxe],

SANMNIATUL
Youd SpIoday THITA ESRILOENTT TonEIGH ooy [IXTIT
A1) £1anoy -Saay, LIRS mesH
EBIEITA

£00T “0€ JOQUIIAON PIPUF S8
SANNK TYINTUNYTAOD HOPVINNON
(LID1AAA) TIONVIVI ANNE NI SEONYHD)
ANV ‘STYALIANTIXT ‘SANNTATY 30 INTWALVLS DNINIESINOD
SIONITTE ‘AINOCGD NOVTINYAA



514

SSEOEETl § cZSskT § 688701 $ 86L°0F $ AR §  OIFIs¢ $ WUVAL IO ANA (LIDLIHA) AINVTYE ONNA
C9¢'8TH’ | €00'F11 089°01 126°tF 90L" Ik £88°F0L A MO HNINNISTE (LEDIATA) ADNVIVE NI
(0£0°26) zEset] 507 LL8°1 ST (eL¥es) {sasn) seounos Juroueury
19710 pue sarmipuadxe oa0
SONUAAIL JO (AIUIIDFAP) S89IXE]
- 6G10°08 - - - - (5asn) sa0inos Fuouruly ISY1o [Blo],
- (o'e1) - - - - mo siggsuen SuneredQ
N 09076 - - - - ur sisjsuen; Juieisdp
(SUASM) STANOS HNIDNVNLT HAHLLO
(0e0‘ee) £05°5S 602 Lig] SIFe (ELbESE) sarmIpuadxa Joao
S3NUAATI 30 (ADUED1faP) §599XT
9TLL 1Y £L9°0¢ 0LT 66611 CELE 6L LS saunjipuadxo (8101,
T " - z " - s1oefoad rende)
- - - - - - [edsousxd - sorAJas 199
9ZT T v - - - - uorze)edsuel],
- - 00£°T 656711 SEL'iE - ey dgng
- . - - - 961°98T fiogus orpang
- £LO0C - - - _mmv.h.vm PIgel Une) pue h‘_m_o_ﬁ:_,
. - - - - £C1°68T TUSWIRRAOT [2I0UR0)
STUNEIENTINE
961°0¢¢ 9L1°T6 60S°T 9E8°E L 0s1%e €26 619 SNURARL [BIO],
£59°1T c&w 8 959 1287 €8t SNODUE][IISTA]
- 98¢°68 - - - - $201A13S 10 sefieyn)
- - - - - - sipurred pue sesuaalT
- . - - - - 69¥00T {BIUAWII2A0Z 2] ]
EPS'86T  § - $ STH'T $ 081°¢l $ 6TE1E $ 185°S1v $ Saxel,
SHANTATY
TEPLIY Joddng € BT IMATIG T B3Iy 90IAI0G T BTy 291A195 IBSITEN{ETT)
Apmo)y RO 1epadg teads eadg fedungy
RAGE RITRLIN| HA0,L Y)ION HAO] YRION sTouy

£007 ‘0f FGUIdBAON PIPUT ABIX
SAONNA TV INTNNYIAOD HOFVIANON
(LIDIATA) IONVIVE NN NI STONVHD
GNY ‘STUNLIANTINT ‘STANTATY 40 INFWALVIS DNINIINOD
SIONITTE ‘AINAOD NOTTINHTA




05

9L6°10C §  SETL Z89801 §  <S1TE §  tTeisc $ 0 OSSOl &
PEv' e8] Z00°L 0tT36 168°Ly 9RTYLT Z067981
Zhs've ££T zor'ol pee1T {£9c'07) {00k 18)
PSP £5T T9¥°01 ¥Ze'iT (€ot™o) (00¥'18)
95L'0¥8°1 PLEFE L90°0L SP6'801 65L°E6 979071
950181 - - - - -
- - - SF6'301 65L°56 9z9°0%1
- PLEYT L90°0L - - -
86775981 LO9YT 62508 69Z°CEL 96€'L9 97T'6%
8007 601 128 €59 9p9°'E 8LT°1
- 8654 80L°6L FI9°6E1 0SL'E9 8¥6°LE
061°€98'1 - - - - -
" $ - - $ - $ - $ - §
LUANEDE AIEIqr] 3 ey ESTARETS OBy B AT
A03014] meT $,E3P100Y 1me) jmo) HLETLGRAT |
digsusof, no)y

£00Z ‘0€ JIQUIDAGN] pOpUT 183

SANNA TYINTWNHIAOCD HOLVINNON
(LTI ADNVIVE ONAI NI STONVHD

HVIX 40 ONT (LIDTIAE) TONVIVE ANOI

UVIA 40 DONINNEYAT (LIDILAC) ADNVIVE N

(sasn} seomos Buroususy
JOI0 PUB SUNIPUAdXS I9AQ
SINUIAAL 30 (AIUArJSP) §590%T

(sasn) sa01nos Burduguy) J8yjo [B10],

mo sxpsuen Junerado
U1 siysueny Fuijersdg
(SESN) SADUNOS ONIONVNLE HAHLO

$2In3)prAdXa JoAC
SANUIAI JO (ADULI0Yap) SS30XT

saunitpuadxa [mog,

soeford peiden

[ed1ound - 9o1a198 1Ga(]
uopepodsuel],

e Aghg

Alares orjqng

pejz[al Unod puw Aerolpng
JUSWRA0T |RISUD

STANLIANTJIXT
SANUSADT FBIOT,

STODUR|[9SHAL
$9IIAIRS J0f 281G
syurrad puw sasuanty
_muzch.ﬂD>cmhuu=H
$oXB],

SANNIATT

ANY ‘SAUNLIGNTIXT ‘SANNTATY 10 INTWALLVLS ONINIHAOD
SIONITTI "AINAOD NOITTINHTA




1S

gki'eT & - $  668CEL § 8706 § 00kt ¢ [.F091  § UVAX 10 NI (LIDLIT) TONY IV GNNA
CE0FT 09 L0388¢ 865 1€ 3E0°ES] 0005k UVIA 40 HNINNIDAT (LIDIAIMD ADNYTVE ANNIT
(bs2) (09) {806'v57) 6THL £96'LY [4¥s1 (ses1) s001n08 Fuisuruy

I3YI0 PUE SO IPULERD 19A0
$30UASI JO (A3U9191]3p) §820XT

sren (612°€9) - - - - (s9sn) 590108 FUSUTUIE 19010 [B10],

(s11t) (612°e9} - - - - 1no sigpsuen Suneedg
- - - - - - 1 sraysuen Buneiad

(STSN) SAOUA0S ONIDNVNET HTILLO

1€ 651°€9 (806'75Z) 6TF'L £96°LY [L¥51 soanppuadg 1040
SoHL3ASE JO (ADUDIDTJP) $§39%RT

ST0T 008721 YA L9y DEESLT 90b'se sormjipuada (2101,
. . B " - - s1oafosd (eiden
- - - - - - jedioutad - a91A208 19T
- - 952°69¢ - - - uoypeedsuery
- - - - - - pesy Hqnd
- - - - - - Aayes o1qng
- - - - BEI'CLT 90¥°SE PAIEIar UN0S puE Areraiphy
$Z0T 0081 - 9Ly - - } ) JUETRIIERY [elauary
STANLIANTJIXY
95T 659°GL HE01 961°CI £60°€01 LLY0S SOTHISAQI jUI0 ),
85t LET £9F°'1 961 1651 LLy SNCAAUR[RISIN
26L' - - OrO°TI zos“I91 0008 50214108 10] SaBIRY}
- - - - - - spuad pue sasusory
- ey £98°g - - - {eluauLUIsACT AT
- $ - § - $ - $ - $ - 3 SaXBL
SANNIATT
PiniLE Finog TEPLIT ooy ERTEWETS] yioddng
Buraroany WBLLIO dpysusiogy, §ADIASBAL ], LG TE AR | I
INSNLY, DA

£00T ‘0 BGURAAON papug JBIX
SANDA TYINTANUTIAOD HOFVIANON
(LIDTAAM) TINVIVE ANNI NI STONVHD
ANV 'SIIOLLIINTIXT ‘SANTARY 10 INTWALVILS DONINITINGD
STONITTI ‘ALNNOD NOTTUNHTA



FAe]

SIE'8E $ 69 $ - $ - $ (599 $ - § L8560 3
GLZ0E 15 - 969 CIT) FLO'T 2807792
S01°g 4 - (9£9'7) 159°g (10D (szszeT)
- - - (8t97) - - -
. - - (349°7) - - -
K] z - Z1 159°¢ (1201 (sgs'eee)
Zv0l PGE0ET LL17901 - T6LET 9Ll'LT PLE 00T ]
- - tyvor - - - -
zrol PEE0ET - - T6L'ET TANEA FL6'009°]
LTS 31 96£°087 LLI90T Zl LT $01°9Z 6vF89¢ T
LT581 - - Z1 81£'8 S 916°LT
- 96£0ET LET'901 - SZI'6Y 148°sT £€5°05£°T
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - k) - $
uonEgoI g SITOTIEN] (i) meIgery [TXEDETS) vy puny
PUE DD euonIpsIIRp SSAEH AL Aawloyy NMEYHIEOJUF I TAF U5
auroyy By umaA SSIUPEAN WL il | vy
SUBILY

£007 '0€ JGUIINON papur] 16X
SANNE TYINTIWNETAOD HOLVINNON
(LID1430) IINVTVE ANNA NI STONYHD
ANV STUNIIONTAXA ‘SINNTATT 40 INTWLLYLS ONINIFHOD
SIONITTI ‘ALNIOD NOTTINIIA,

HVIX 0 ANT (LID1ITA) TONVTIVIE AN

U¥AA A0 ONINNIOTH (UIDTIAA) AONVIVH NN

{sasn) seamos Fuouzuy
IO pUE sapadys 1A
SONURADE JO (fouatorfap} 5s90%]

{gasn) seomos Fuloueuly IS0 [BI0],

o s1agsaern) Funeredo
ug saggsuern) Supeisdo

(SASN) STDUNOS ONEINVNII HTHLO

saniipuadxs JAC
SONIZAD1 1O (AOUDI2SP) S500XT

ssanppusdxe jp10],

siooford earden

Jedounid - 9014135 1G3(]

uorjerodsuer ),

Wizay 3tqnd

Kajues anqnd

pareiar 1noa pue Lserorphy

JUIIUIRAOF [RI9UAD)
STUNLIANAIXT

SONUSADL |610),

SNODURI{OOS I
5301A195 JOJ sa81ey)y
situuad pue sasusory
JeruswutoAaFIaguy
sang]

SANNIATE



€9

CTELIFOL § 82909l § 08668 §  0Z9°1 §  TLLs96 - ¢ soog
ZELDSSTI &br 181 791762 SEes 817'¢66 LYFTES ISTLE
(Lz¥'se1'D) (iz8‘oz} (z81'?) (c1L'e) (ot4°27) (L1¥ZES) {11}
1SLZ81 - (zov's) - TLESOE (ose'ze) -
(L9v981) - (zor'c} - - (0s.°28) -
g1 1pg - - - TLE'501 - -
(8L1T6T°1) (1z8'c) oTL'S (s1L°8) (818°CE1) {L99766) (XAND]
690°18L°6 LSF'95T - 9LSpl $66Fr1 0007008 80L I
SGEPPI - - - $66 Fi1 - -
£589L1°E - - - - - -
968°86L - - - - - -
LoV TTH'E - - - - 000008 -
[$ZE91°1 - - - - - -
LBSPLOT LEyost - LS - - 8OL TV
16878378 9£9'6ET (AAS 198°01 LLTTE ££E €8S°0F
STOCLE 9£9°¢¢T 0zT'§ - LLTTL %3 €o€
SOLIFL - - - - - 070k
£6L°061 - - - - - -
£0T'60' Y - - 198°01 - - -
SOI'CILE § - $ - $ - $ - - $ - $
18I0 |, SINATIS 19T} 58> STIONINH i DA ARG uonBmoIny
png Soyy Fuppioa JO preog Tendsy 3931 SID

00T GQM ._un—EQK-Z _yaﬁ:m— JABI X
SANNA TYINIANMIAOD HOLVINNON
(LIDLITA) FINYIVE AN NI STONVHD
UNV ‘STINLIANIAXT ‘SAANTATE O INTWTLV.LS ONINITINOD
SIONITTE "AINNOD NOITIINUIA

UYAL L0 ONT (LD LTI TDNVIVE NN

HAVTA JO DONINNIDAT (LIDIAA) AONYIVE AN

{sosn) ssontos Fuiousuyy
1910 pue samypuadxs 1940
5on0aAat 30 (Aouatolap) ssaoxg

{sesn) seoinos Suiouruly 1110 1230,

Mo siagsuer FunendQ
ur s1gsuen Fuedg
(SAS) SAOUNOS INIDINYNIA HTHLO

samppuadss a0
SEUIADI JO (Sousioyap) ssa0%yg

sosnpuade 1o,

stoalord [ende)
Tedrauiad - 201Ad88 199¢]
ucznodsuaL],
wieay Aqng
Aages 21qnd
pase[al 1moa pue Argra|pny
uataaA03 [e1uan)
ST LLIAONAIXE

SNUIADL |BjO 1,

STOSURHSOSI A
$8014138 10J s9B1ey))
spurad pue sasusaty
|ewsunaAc a1y
saxey,

SAMNITATYT



VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

OTHER ENTERPRISE FUNDS
November 30, 2003

Vermilion Solid Waste
County Farm Management Total”
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ - b3 170,816 170,816
Temporary investments 31,298 350,000 381,298
Receivables: - 27,182 27,182
Accrued interest - 633 633
Total current assets 31,298 348,633 379,931
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 1,000 - 1,000
Buildings - 15,000 19,000
Recycling equipment - 96,610 96,610
Other equipment - 30,882 30,382
Total, at cost 1,006 146,492 147,492
Less accumulated depreciation - 101,182 101,182
Total property and
equipment 1,000 45,310 46,310
TOTAL ASSETS $ 32,298 $ 353,943 626,241
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ 23,690 23,690
Accrued payroli - 8317 8,317
Total current liabilities - 32,007 32,007
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 1,000 - 1,000
Unrestricted 31,298 361,936 593,234
Total net assets 32,298 561,936 594.234
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 5 32,298 $ 593,543 626,241
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VERMILION COUNTY, [LLINGIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
OTHER ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Year Ended November 30, 2003

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Other services and charges
Contractual services
Capital outlay
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Net income from
operating activities
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income

Income before operating transfers

OPERATING TRANSFERS
Operating transfers out

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR

Vermilion Solid Waste
County Farm Management Total

- $ 401,897 b 401,897

- 2,000 2,000

65,380 6,606 71,986

65,380 410,503 475,883

- 145,710 145,710

- 8,824 8.824

23,401 21,614 45,015

- 197,641 197,641

- 1,627 1,627

~ 12,625 12,625

23,401 388,041 411,442

41,979 22,462 64,441

- 6,070 6,070

41,979 28,532 70,511
{15,000) (109,032) (124.032)
26,979 (80,500) (53,521)

4,319 643,436 647,753

31,298 $ 562,936 3 594,234
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ILLINO1S DEPARTMENT QF HUMAN SERVICES
GRANT REPORT for the period July 1 through June 30, 2003
Page 2 of 2 — UNALLOWABLE COSTS REPORT ’

aGeNcY nave: Yermilion County Health Department Fene 3 7—6002224

DHS GRANT-FUNDED SERVICES

P%g[grp, 1 Program 2 Program 3 Program 4 Program
ERW

Program Name/Number/Coniract Number: LiF [ i |

0eao 0441

Unallowable Costs (see instructions}

compensation of governing hody i ! [ | |

enterfainment { I ‘ | l l

associztion dues J l l | |

meetings and carvantions [ [ [ { {

fundraising | i ] [ I

bad debt [ [ [ [ |

charity and grants [ | ! | ' [

unallowable interest : i 1 | . |

inventories | 1 ] [ I

depreciation on DHS-funded assets [ ] I | i

cost of production { i l | !

in-kind expanses | [ | I |

alcohalic baverages i i i [ i

perscnal automobiles | 1 [ | [

fines & peralties [ ] | ] |

personal use items [ 1 | i |
lobbying i | l [ l
unallowabie relocation i i | | l
gratuities | i [ | [
paliticat cantributions | | | | ]

related party transacticns { | ] | t

sosts where a conflict of interest exists | [ [ | ]

Unallowable costs if Program is Federally funded or
cost-restricted by Contract (See Instructions)

Explain: ( | [ | |

Explairs: : ( | ] [ I

TOTAL UNALLOWABLE COSTS (oline Dof | af ol | |

Grant Report) —-See below if NONE

If ne unallowable costs are listed, sign and date as foliows:
| certify that no unallowable costs are included in either direct costs or allocated Managemeant and General costs on
the Grant Report.

Signature v Date

Donna Dunham, Financial Director
Printed Name and Title

A e O Quvham 11/30/03

63

Revised Ao 20032



o]

C UG JHNY oD inicey

79

*POUIBd 3S9JIIJIUT JO SWIIF UT JUBDTJTUBES ST POUIED 3§9I91UT JI0J BUTIUNODIE JO IS0y

*2339 f98easod ,mmmO£Q ge yoans sasuadxo I9ylo I0J posgn ST LoulTeAarnbs

SUWTY wﬁmm wmmuoom asenbs £q PRIBOOT[E ST JUSI ‘ISASMQH °[9ABI] pue s3ifddns J0J PIsn 1€ S50
10011 m uoHele|dxa oeje) sjseq Jayo « ‘S}S00 aup B0} x 'sojle(es joeup :U0 paseq PajECDE aJe §]S00 |RJeUBL) puE Juawebeueyy 1| JLON
_ | B | | _ % (8uonoNIsu| sas) pauley jsaieiy] H
[ o [o [0 [0 - lo . [ (suonaniisuy aes) suojsiaodd epadg| o
[SozT08T[8/1 0 [0VS 6E | 007 066[22% 21 | 51500 ajqemally V1O1| o
[ O {0 [o | 0 [0 | (uonejuawnoop yaeye) sesn peacidde Jayjo ppy| 3
| © {U {v v |v - z obed Jad 8)800 ajqemo|eun wenqng! g
60°zGe‘T] -0- [687 wev | G0C 081] 8Z1'0¢ |9%S 6t | 007 065247 LI | avvIviorns| o
-0- _ j060°0L [ 078761 | 08%79 [168 [ 199°¢8T] ;cenr | (1 @10N) 81500 jeisuag pue jusweBeuep ajedo)y| g
0‘zee‘1 | cov'aezl 661 992 | s6€:091] 869°'cz lcco‘sc | 6cs 0% 1v6°8G | sasuadxa Wweibolg anal v
00%0 0¢%0 - 06t0 00t0 050
CRELDTITE | ZGEDTTE| ZGEOTIE TSEDITE| Z6GEDHTITE uonealivenp] Lyoaquini
IdH IJ0H TIMH WA £~-0 JoenuoDrequinn/ewenN wefor
G wesborg] §umibold| ¢ welbolg] z weiboig| | weiboig|
ejo ] [Blauan| swelbolg
g by 1a4jo iy SI0IAYES QdANNA-INYHE SHA

v777009-,¢ N3

juswiiedsq yiyeey £3uno) UOTTTWIBL

FNYN AONIDY

Aiewwing 1s07) s|gemoyyy jueic) -- 7 jo | abey

moom ‘o£ eunp yBnony | Ainp poped eyj 10§ FHOJTYH INVHD

SFNANIS NYWNH 40 INIWLHYAIT SIONITT




ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
GRANT REPORT for the perlod Juiy 1 through June 30,
Page 2 of 2 - UNALLOWABLE COSTS REPCRT

Acency namve: Yermilion County Health Department

2003

FenS 7—6002224

Program 1

DHS GRANT-FUNDED SERVICES

Program 2 Program 3 Program 4

Program 5

U=3

Program Name/Number/Contract Number:

[ FCHM |

EWIL 1 HCCI |

HF1

0570

Unallowzble Costs (see instructions}

0300 0390 0420

0400

compensation of governing body !

entertainment |

association dues [

meelings and conventions i

fundraising {

bad debt [

charity and grants i

unallowable interest |

inventcries |

depreciation on DHS-funded assets [

cost of production |

in-kind expenses f

alcoholic beverages |

personal auiomobiles |

fines & penalties [

personal use items ]

labbying ]

unallowable relocation |

gratuities ]

political contributions i

related party transactions . [

costs where a conflict of interest exists [

Unallowable cosls if Program is Federally funded or
cost-restricted by Contract (See Instructions)

Explain; |

0]

0l

Explain: |

[ I I

TOTAL UNALLOWABLE COSTS (tofine Dof |

ol

nl

Grant Report) --See below if NONE

If no unaliowable costs are listed, sign and date as follows:

the Grant Report.

| certify that no unaflowable costs are included in either direct costs or allocated Management and General costs on

Signature

Date

Alorna ). Manbam 11/30/03
i/

Donna J. Dunham,Financial Director

Printed Name and Tifle
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

66



Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance and on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Vermilion County Board
Danville, 1llinois

We have audited the financial statements of Vermilion County as of and for the year ended
November 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2004. In our report,
our opinion was adverse because Vermilion County has not maintained historical cost data on
general fixed assets. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Vermilion County’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracis and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tesis disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Vermilion County’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one
or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstaternents in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operations that we consider to be material weaknesses. We also noted
other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of Vermilion County in a separate letter dated February 10, 2004.
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This report is mtended solely for the information and use of the finance committee, management
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Ctepze Komrectlrson L1 P

Danville, Illinois
February 10, 2004
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Vermilion County Board
Danville, Illinois

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Vermilion County with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended November
30, 2003. Vermilion County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of Vermilion County’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on Vermilion County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Vermilion County’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal determination on Vermilion County’s compliance
with those requirements.

In our opinion, Vermilion County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements

referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
November 30, 2003.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Vermilion County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Vermilion
County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal
program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the finance committee, management

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

C%,/@»—,MAL/A

Danville, IHlinois
February 10, 2004
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
November 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

Non-monetary Assistance

The Vermilion County Health Department receives commodities for the immunization program
through the Ilinois Department of Public Health (IDPH). During fiscal year 2003 these
commodities were valued at $44,413. This amount is included in the accompanying schedule as
the Immunization Grant.

The Vermilion County Health Department issues food instruments to participants in the WIC
Program that are used to purchase food. During fiscal year 2003 these food instruments were

valued at $671,789. This amount is included in the accompanying schedule as part of the WIC
Grant.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying schedule.
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VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINQIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended November 30, 2003

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

The auditor’s report was adverse on the governmental activities financial statements of
Vermilion County because historical cost data on general fixed assets is not maintained.

No instance of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Vermilion County
were disclosed during the audit.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Vermilion
County expresses an unqualified opinion.

There are no audit findings relative to the compliance for major federal award programs
for Vermilion County to be reported.

The following programs were tested as major programs:
¢ Supplemental Nutrition Program for
Women, Infants and Children 10.557
¢ Byme Formula Grant 16.579
The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $300,000.

Vermilion County was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.

No summary schedule of prior audit findings is required.
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